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1              TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

2

3           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Let's go ahead and

4      get started on today's meeting.

5           We've got -- we're going to start off with

6      a little bit of sad news of we've had a

7      gentleman, our Deputy Sheriff Robert Musterman,

8      he passed away, was it, yesterday.

9           MR. STAMP:  Yes, sir.

10           MR. CALLAHAN:  Yeah, it was yesterday.

11      He's been with the Sheriff's Department for ten

12      years, and he's the one that protected us for

13      the last ten years.  And actually he run the

14      security for the Council and the courthouse and

15      was very involved.

16           So it's all dear to our hearts that he's

17      passed away.  So we want to have a moment of

18      silence for him and his family and the

19      Sheriff's Department and everybody that knew

20      him, his kids.  So it's a sad moment for him.

21           And it just shows us, just shows us how
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1      special life is and how short life can be

2      because he was a young man.  I don't know quite

3      what his age was, but I don't think he was 50.

4      He might have been 50.  Huh?

5           SECRETARY:  Sixty.

6           MR. CALLAHAN:  Sixty.  Well, that tells

7      you how good he looked.

8           MR. STAMP:  That's still very young.

9           MR. CALLAHAN:  That's for sure.

10           But let's do a moment of silence, and then

11      we'll stand for the Pledge of Allegiance.

12         (Pledge of Allegiance of the Flag.)

13           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  All right.  So we'll

14      go ahead and get started.  We're hopefully

15      going to be a short meeting for everybody.

16           So at this time, we've got the agenda

17      before us.  And is there any additions,

18      deletions, or corrections to the agenda?

19           MS. MIELKE:  I want to amend the agenda

20      that the introduction of legislation, the 25 --

21      excuse me.

Page 4

1           MR. CALLAHAN:  Right.

2           MS. MIELKE:  The amendment.

3           MR. STAMP:  The proclamation.

4           MR. CALLAHAN:  The proclamation.

5           MS. MIELKE:  The proclamation.  The

6      recipient is on her way.

7           MR. CALLAHAN:  Right.

8           MS. MIELKE:  And so we'll move that to

9      after the public hearing?

10           MR. CALLAHAN:  You got it.  Yup.

11           Is there a second?

12           MR. LESHER:  Second.

13           MS. MIELKE:  Sorry about that.

14           MR. CALLAHAN:  No problem.  We got a

15      motion and second to go ahead and move the

16      proclamation to after the public hearing.

17      Madam Secretary, could you call the vote.

18           SECRETARY:  Mr. Callahan.

19           MR. CALLAHAN:  Aye.

20           SECRETARY:  Mr. Stepp.

21           MR. STEPP:  Aye.
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1           SECRETARY:  Mr. Lesher.

2           MR. LESHER:  Aye.

3           SECRETARY:  Ms. Mielke.

4           MS. MIELKE:  Aye.

5           SECRETARY:  Ms. Haythe.

6           MS. HAYTHE:  Aye.

7           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  All right.  Next on

8      the agenda is the disbursements.  We've had a

9      chance to take a look at the October 15th -- I

10      mean April 15th disbursements.  Is there any

11      additions, deletions, or corrections to the

12      disbursements, Council?  Okay.  Hearing none,

13      the chair moves that the disbursements be

14      accepted as unanimous consent.  Okay.

15           Madam Secretary, okay, you want to go

16      ahead and introduce introduction to

17      legislation, please, the budget.

18           SECRETARY:  An act to establish the

19      2025-26 annual budget and appropriation

20      ordinance.

21           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  All right.  Martha,
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1      you want to come on up, you and Kaitlin.  Come

2      on.  Everybody is on TV.  Come on, now, you

3      know.  You're a big deal now.

4           MS. FOSTER-CLARK:  Just for you.

5           MR. STAMP:  Look at that pretty picture,

6      the PowerPoint.

7           MS. SPARKS:  I like that.

8           MR. STEPP:  You can get copies of that I

9      believe at the library.  It's the -- I forget

10      the name of the map.  It's I think from 1859.

11      I think the library -- Dana, keep me honest

12      here.  Don't you have copies of that?

13           MS. NEWMAN:  Yeah.  You can get them in

14      the Maryland room.

15           MR. STEPP:  Awesome.  We got ours.  It's

16      awesome.

17           MS. SPARKS:  My husband got one for me for

18      Christmas at a store in St. Michaels.  And

19      it's waiting to be hung on the wall at home.

20           You want to start.

21           MR. STAMP:  So Council, we'll go ahead and
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1      start off with a little presentation for you.

2           We have Martha and Kaitlin here as well.

3      You want to advance the next slide?

4           I just want to take a moment before

5      handing it off to Martha and Kaitlin and say a

6      couple of things about how we got to where we

7      are.

8           The lead-in to this conversations is over

9      the last three years, this Council has worked

10      really hard to continue the effort to

11      conservatively budget, to build a reserve fund,

12      to put in place a reserve policy so that money

13      can be protected.  And at the same time, just

14      prepare for some of the threats that we see

15      that we knew that were coming.

16           Some of those risks that we were looking

17      at is there's some severe federal policy shifts

18      going on right now.  The State of Maryland is

19      passes funding obligations down to State (sic.)

20      governments.  And of course, we still see

21      challenges with the supply chains and workforce
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1      competition.

2           So some of our strategies that we used, as

3      you know, Council, this budget was last couple

4      of years we worked really hard with our

5      emergency services and our Sheriff's Office and

6      education to get them where they need to be.

7           And if you look at the trajectory over the

8      last couple of years, it was a pretty steep

9      climb.  But you all knew and you all directed

10      and we all sensed that we were moving into an

11      environment where we needed to flatten that

12      budget out this year.

13           So this year, you all are introducing a

14      budget that is flat from last year at this

15      point in time, which was a hard task.  And I

16      commend you for doing that.

17           This budget, there are no new positions in

18      the general fund.  The budget is flat from last

19      year, in the vicinity of last year's budget.

20           We did reduce the number of capital

21      purchases for capital equipment this year, and
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1      we scaled back capital improvement projects.

2           It's important to note that isn't stalling

3      work because we have plenty on our plate to get

4      done.  And so this year is about getting

5      capital improvements done.

6           And that means completing the Public

7      Safety Complex, finishing the library upgrade

8      in St. Michaels, finishing Chapel School

9      project, building the EMS station at the north

10      end of the county, and working on the sewer

11      projects as well as resurfacing of roads.  A

12      lot of work being done.

13           So I want to make sure that the public

14      knows that although this budget is flat, we

15      continue to do good things for the county.  We

16      are living within our means, and that's what is

17      important.

18           We continue to use the strategy of working

19      on personnel, which is workforce, working on

20      processes, and pushing our projects forward.

21      So that's the strategy, some of the risks we're

3 (Pages 6 - 9)

Veritext Legal Solutions
202-803-8830 -- 410-494-8300



Talbot County Council Meeting April 15, 2025

Page 10

1      seeing, and that's what this budget is about.

2           And that's just a lead-in slide to handing

3      it off to Martha and Kaitlin.

4           And of course, I know Council will join me

5      in our appreciation for both of these two

6      individuals who just have really done an

7      amazing job, and we're so, so fortunate to have

8      them.

9           So with that, I'll hand it to you, Martha.

10           MS. SPARKS:  Thank you.  Martha Sparks,

11      finance director for Talbot County.

12           MS. FOSTER-CLARK:  Kaitlin Foster-Clark,

13      assistant finance director.

14           MS. SPARKS:  Okay.  Good evening, Council.

15           Staff is presenting to Council a balanced

16      general fund budget of $161,052,000 for the

17      2026 fiscal year.

18           This budget continues the county's

19      conservative budgeting methodology, with

20      moderate adjustments.  These budget practices

21      have served the county well and have placed us
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1      in a healthy financial position.

2           The FY25, first I'll start with kind of an

3      update on how FY25 is doing.  The FY25 general

4      fund revenues are expected to exceed our

5      budgeted projections by approximately

6      $8 million.  That's when you want a budget to

7      exceed, when it's revenues.  That's a good

8      thing.

9           And this is primarily attributable to

10      income tax revenue distributions coming in from

11      the State at amounts higher than we projected.

12      As you know, this is our most volatile revenue

13      source.  We have the most volatile income tax

14      revenues in the State.  And this is

15      attributable to the high ratio of income tax

16      revenues from high income earners.

17           For general fund expenditures in FY25, we

18      are expected to be underbudget by about

19      $2 million.  And we still have two and a half

20      months.  So those things can change.

21           The FY25 budget has supported improvements
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1      to general government services, communications,

2      and overall government effectiveness.

3           And some of the examples, and these are

4      just a few examples of what the FY25 budget has

5      accomplished.  Some examples are the strength

6      in our IT resources and our improved network

7      connections, cyber security, efficiency in

8      payments to vendors and our employers.

9           I just can't say enough how much better

10      our network and our connectivity is and our IT

11      services in the last year.  It started before

12      that, but this year has really -- we've seen a

13      difference.  It helps us to be more efficient

14      in finance.

15           There is progress on capital projects.

16      And this is not all of them, but include

17      contracting with a company to provide computer

18      aided dispatch, or CAD.  And that's moving us

19      to the next step of switching to a new system.

20           We have the completion of the Public

21      Safety Building with the Sheriff and EMS
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1      offices already moved in.  We have -- Council

2      just approved a new Motorola lease.  That's

3      been signed for the purchase of 911 consoles to

4      be installed at the new building, which will

5      provide redundant services because we'll also

6      have our Port Street location.  So that

7      strengthens our emergency response.

8           There's the paving of main connector roads

9      throughout the county, including Airport Road.

10      Still can't get over how awesome that road is.

11           Also, continue construction on the

12      St. Michaels Library and renovation project.

13           As mentioned, Talbot County has

14      implemented its conservative budgeting

15      methodology with minor adjustments.

16      Historically, we under projected our revenues

17      and over budgeted our expenditures.  The effect

18      of this strategy has been to grow our reserves

19      to place us in a strong position to weather the

20      financial uncertainty that we're experiencing

21      or beginning to experience now from the federal
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1      government and the State of Maryland.

2           The State of Maryland has mitigated their

3      budget deficits by pushing their liabilities

4      down to the counties.

5           The new reserve policies as approved by

6      Council provide funding and risk mitigation

7      strategies that aid in formulating the budget

8      that you see before you.  With these new

9      reserve policies in place, we shifted our

10      budget projections for income tax, recordation,

11      and transfer tax revenues in line with what we

12      can actually expect to receive based upon

13      historical performance.

14           However, I would caution, again, that

15      income tax revenues for Talbot County are

16      volatile and will be so, more so moving forward

17      as a result of the State of Maryland approving

18      higher tax rates on half-millionaires and

19      millionaires within our county, that reside in

20      our county.

21           The last time this type of tax was
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1      implemented, Talbot County's income tax

2      revenues decreased by 40 percent within one

3      year.  So we're waiting to see the impact of

4      that moving forward.

5           By maintaining Talbot County's low income

6      tax rate and not making a change, we hope to

7      mitigate that migration of high-income earners

8      from Talbot County.

9           The FY26 budget has prioritized

10      investments in infrastructure through

11      completion of existing projects and new ones,

12      like ADA upgrades to county buildings, county

13      storage facilities, and upgrades to the aging

14      county pool facilities, just to name a few.

15           So the FY26 budget highlights.  The

16      proposed general fund budget, as I mentioned,

17      is $161,052,000.  And that includes, regarding

18      revenues, property tax revenues, two percent

19      over FY25 revenues calculated in accordance

20      with the county Charter.  Also, one cent to the

21      property tax rate, as authorized by the voters
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1      of Talbot County in the November 2020 and

2      November 2024 general elections.

3           For expenditures, we'll start with

4      funding.  Talbot County Public Schools, Talbot

5      County, within this budget, is required local

6      share funding of 55.1 million and an additional

7      $260,500 for capital projects, which is the

8      conversion of stadium lighting at St. Michaels

9      High School for the conversion to LED lights.

10           The TCPS, the Talbot County Schools's

11      appropriation and debt service for facilities

12      account for 43 percent of the county's

13      operating budget.  And that is a focus on our

14      recurring expenditures.

15           This budget also includes a 2.5 percent

16      cost of living adjustment and one performance

17      based STEP for county employees.  It has no new

18      general government positions.  And the use of

19      fund balance reserves for the investment of

20      $3.84 million in capital outlay, which is

21      equipment purchases, 13.7 million for capital
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1      projects and 1.7 million for recreation fund

2      capital projects.

3           And here is a history of our fund balance.

4      Again, I think you've seen that slide before.

5           And then with our general fund revenues,

6      you can see we have an overall, in income

7      before transfers, an increase of 10.6 percent.

8      So as you can see, there were adjustments made

9      to the income tax rate to bring that more in

10      line with realistic receipt of those income tax

11      revenues.  Recordation and transfer tax were

12      also brought in alignment with historical

13      trends.  As you know, those revenues are highly

14      tied to the health of our real estate market.

15           And for general fund expenditures, you can

16      see that the recurring expenditures, which are

17      that first subtotal, is there's an overall

18      increase of 6.3 percent.  And transfers out,

19      actually you can see those decreased.

20           And here is a graph showing our general

21      fund revenues and the percentage that each
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1      contributes to the total of general fund

2      revenues.

3           Now, this slide and the next one for

4      general fund expenditures, I will say that

5      these graphs follow what is in our budget

6      workbook.  And these are also the way, the same

7      categories and groups that we use in our annual

8      comprehensive financial report.

9           In this slide, education is at

10      40.2 percent, but that also includes Chesapeake

11      College, TCPS, and the library.  That is the

12      way the Government Finance Officers Association

13      groups those expenses.

14           Budget amendments.  These are items that

15      we were not able to include in the budget by

16      the time we had our last work session.  And

17      those two items are teachers' pensions, which

18      are at $440,098, and community college

19      pensions, which is $12,858.  These are mandated

20      funding.  These are previous liabilities from

21      the State that they are pushing down to the
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1      counties that we will need to fund.

2           As I mentioned, the State of Maryland has

3      mitigated their budget deficits by pushing

4      their liabilities down to the counties.  So we

5      are now responsible for paying for $440,000 for

6      teachers' retirement.  Previously this has

7      been 100 percent funded by the State of

8      Maryland.  This is a totally new mandate this

9      year and will be billed to us directly from the

10      State and not through the school system.  There

11      is also the $12,858 for college retirement.

12           And I want to speak to the importance of

13      including that $440,000 in an education

14      supplement.  Talbot County is very limited in

15      the revenues that it can generate.  As I

16      mentioned before, we can have two percent over

17      the certified revenues from the previous year

18      and one cent on that calculated tax rate can be

19      added.

20           These revenues can be used, are used to

21      support general government expenditures,
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1      everything except education expenses, because

2      we have the opportunity through the education

3      supplement to provide for any increases in

4      education funding.  If we don't use that, the

5      education supplement, then it will need to be

6      provided by the other bucket of funding that we

7      need -- that we rely heavily on for general

8      government.

9           These costs and liabilities of the State

10      of Maryland that they pushed down to the

11      counties are -- have been done so that they

12      could balance their budget.  This means that

13      the burden of raising revenues for teachers'

14      pensions falls on the counties instead of the

15      State.  We can't use reserves to fund recurring

16      expenditures.  This creates an unsustainable

17      budget.

18           If we don't use the education supplement,

19      we will always be $440,00 in the hole and we

20      can't play catch-up to add it to the education

21      supplement in subsequent years.

Page 21

1           I'd also like to point out that as

2      undesirable as it is to raise taxes, our tax

3      increases by our Charter's design are moderate

4      increases and are reflected in our standing as

5      the county with the lowest property tax rate in

6      the State of Maryland.  The Charter requires us

7      to live within our means.  It forces county

8      staff to find the most effective and efficient

9      ways to provide for government services.

10           And I think we do a very good job of that

11      here in Talbot County.  But I just can't stress

12      enough the importance of passing along

13      increases related to education funding in an

14      education supplement.

15           On this slide, you can see there's a

16      history of property tax rates.  You can see

17      last year, the total rate was .7910.  And this

18      year, as it stands before we make any

19      amendments, it is .7926.

20           If an education supplement was added to

21      that, it would be .7971.  And it doesn't look
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1      right when you look at that because you're

2      thinking we've added a penny, but you have to

3      think about the impact that increased

4      assessments has had on that.  So that also

5      brings that down.  So the increase is not as

6      large as it would appear in the rate itself.

7           Here you can see the history of a county

8      tax bill for a home assessed at $300,000.

9      We've been using it so long, you know, their

10      property has gone up.  But this is our

11      benchmark that we use for an illustration.

12           So you can see at the current tax rate of

13      .7926, that would be an increase in a property

14      tax bill of $4.80.  With the addition of an

15      education supplement of .0045 to cover the

16      additional teachers' pensions that were

17      mandated funding that we have to cover, it

18      would cost an additional $13.50 for someone

19      with a $300,000 home.

20           And then this slide, there's an example, a

21      sample of a property tax bill for a $300,000
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1      home and what that looks like.  This one does

2      not have an education supplement.

3           In this slide, this is the 2025 county

4      property tax rates and the FY25 local increase

5      tax rates.

6           On August 23, 2024, we went through a

7      rating.  Fitch Ratings changed their criteria,

8      and they went through and reviewed us with

9      their new criteria.  And they affirmed the

10      county's rating at AAA.

11           One of the bullet points that I pulled

12      from their rating comments was that Talbot

13      County's financial resilience is driven by a

14      combination of its high revenue control

15      assessment and its high expenditure control

16      assessment, culminating in ample budgetary

17      flexibility assessment.

18           And this, Moody's, also they recognized

19      Talbot County as financially the county being

20      very strong and the management team being

21      generally conservative in its budgeting.
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1           So the public hearings will be held on

2      Tuesday, May 6, 2025, at 2 p.m.  It will be

3      here in the Bradley Meeting Room.  And at

4      7 p.m., we'll be at the Easton High School

5      cafeteria.

6           The public is invited to submit written

7      public comments by Friday, May 2, 2025, at the

8      email address provided.

9           Final budget deliberations are scheduled

10      for Tuesday, May 13th.  And budget adoption is

11      scheduled for Tuesday, May 27th.

12           If the public would like to see any more

13      information on the proposed budget, they can go

14      to the Talbot County website.

15           And that's your FY26 budget.

16           MR. CALLAHAN:  That sounds great.  Great

17      job.

18           Go ahead, Council.  Discussion.

19           MS. HAYTHE:  No.  Thank you, Martha.

20      Appreciate the hard work.  I know it was a

21      challenge waiting for the teacher pension and
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1      other numbers to come in after we had done our

2      budget workshop sessions.  But thank you for

3      all the hard work.  Greatly appreciated.

4           MS. SPARKS:  You're welcome.

5           MS. MIELKE:  Thank you for the hard work,

6      too, and for the clear presentation of where we

7      are with our budget.

8           MS. SPARKS:  Thank you.

9           MR. LESHER:  Clearly we've still got some

10      storm clouds on the horizon, both from the

11      federal and State budget?s impacts on local,

12      on local budgeting.  But I think that this sets

13      us up in as strong as a position -- and

14      frankly, we're going into this in, as you

15      outline, a strong position.  I think that this

16      is a sound approach for, for a start in this

17      process.  Thank you.

18           MR. STEPP:  Awful lot of hours to get to

19      where we are.  So thank you for that.

20           I'm excited that we can move the

21      teachers' pension portion to a supplement.

7 (Pages 22 - 25)

Veritext Legal Solutions
202-803-8830 -- 410-494-8300



Talbot County Council Meeting April 15, 2025

Page 26

1      Pleased that we were able to do that.

2           So thank you for giving us that

3      information that we can.

4           MS. SPARKS:  Yes.  And I will update you.

5      Since our last budget work session, we have, we

6      have done some finagling.  We contacted our

7      delegate, Tom Hutchinson, because the budget

8      bill had moved from the Senate at that point to

9      there because their education article had

10      unclear -- well, it was not clear.  It was very

11      clear that the only thing that could be added

12      to the education supplement were appropriations

13      from the county board.

14           And when he brought that to their

15      attention, and then Senator Mautz got involved

16      and there was leadership from both the Senate

17      and House, and they basically, they added

18      language in the 11th hour literally to that

19      education article to add on behalf of language

20      so that we would be able to include that in the

21      education supplement.
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1           MR. STEPP:  Well done.  Thank you.

2           MR. CALLAHAN:  Yup, yup.  And like my

3      colleagues said, we really appreciate you guys

4      doing such hard work.  And not only you guys,

5      your whole team.  So I give you guys, the whole

6      department, kudos for doing such a great job

7      this year and last, you know.

8           So really appreciate it.

9           So okay.  At this time, Madam Secretary,

10      you want to show our hands to introduce as a

11      bill.

12           SECRETARY:  However you want to do it.

13           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Show our hands.

14           MR. LESHER:  Introduced by Council.

15           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Good job.

16           SECRETARY:  This will be known as Bill

17      Number 1585, and the public hearing, as

18      Ms. Sparks said, will be on, hearings, will be

19      on Tuesday, May 6th, at 2 p.m. in the Bradley

20      Meeting Room and at 7 o'clock at the Easton

21      High School cafeteria.
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1           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  That sounds good.

2      Thank you, guys.

3           MS. FOSTER-CLARK:  Thank you.

4           MS. SPARKS:  Thank you.

5           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  I know we got two

6      minutes for the public hearing.

7           MR. LESHER:  We do.

8           MS. HAYTHE:  Are we going to do the

9      proclamation?

10           MS. MIELKE:  Is she here?

11           MS. HAYTHE:  She's here.

12           MR. CALLAHAN:  We can, but we said we were

13      going to go after.

14           What would you like to do?

15           MR. STEPP:  We said after public hearing?

16           MR. CALLAHAN:  Yeah.

17           MR. STEPP:  Okay.

18           MS. HAYTHE:  Okay.

19           MR. STAMP:  It shouldn't be long for the

20      public hearing.  Do you want to go with that?

21           MS. HAYTHE:  Yeah.

Page 29

1           MR. LESHER:  We've got 35 seconds until we

2      can open the public hearing.

3           MS. HAYTHE:  It's not 5:30 yet.

4           MS. VERDERY:  I'll walk slow.

5           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Yeah.  Walk slow and

6      come on up.  Sorry about that.  Okay.  All

7      right.

8           MS. VERDERY:  Good evening.  I am Mary Kay

9      Verdery, the grants administrator for Talbot

10      County.  And I thank you for allowing us to be

11      part of your agenda this evening.

12           So in 2020, Talbot County received

13      $250,000 in federal CARES Act COVID funding

14      through the Department of Housing Community

15      Development Community Block Grant program to

16      support St. Michaels Community Center and the

17      Upper Shore Aging food programs.

18           The Department of Housing Community

19      Development has recently notified the county

20      that they have approximately $2 million

21      remaining under this grant and that these funds

8 (Pages 26 - 29)

Veritext Legal Solutions
202-803-8830 -- 410-494-8300



Talbot County Council Meeting April 15, 2025

Page 30

1      are currently available to support COVID

2      preparedness for homeless shelters and food

3      program facilities only on a first come, first

4      served basis.

5           We reached out to our local food pantry

6      and homeless shelter providers and received

7      three letters of interest for these funds.

8           The first request was from Talbot

9      Interfaith Shelter for two lift elevators, and

10      they were found to be a better match for a

11      different funding source.  So we will return to

12      you with that request under a different program

13      for that funding.

14           So the two food pantries seeking

15      assistance this evening are the Neighborhood

16      Service Center for shelving, food, a lift gate,

17      HVAC unit, and food pantry staff.  And the

18      St. Michaels Community Center is also

19      requesting funds for food, supplies, shelving,

20      and staffing.

21           So we are here this evening seeking public

Page 31

1      comment and Council support for an amendment to

2      our previous grant agreement for these two

3      local food pantries in the amount not to exceed

4      $117,000.

5           Additional activity details were provided

6      in your Granicus package, but staff from each

7      food pantry, Ms. Neal and Ms. Horne and I, are

8      here to help answer any questions that you may

9      have this evening.

10           MR. LESHER:  Ms. Verdery, what is the, the

11      portion of this that is for staffing, what is

12      the eligible period when that can be allocated?

13           MS. VERDERY:  The funds have to be spent

14      by June of 2026.  So they could take you

15      through that period, but everything has to be

16      spent by June of 2026.

17           MR. LESHER:  So these are immediately,

18      eligible for immediate expenditure?

19           MS. VERDERY:  Correct, correct.  As soon

20      as we submit this amendment, they'll review.

21      And they're approving them as they're coming
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1      in.  So they're not waiting for a certain

2      period or a certain time to gather.  They're

3      just taking them as they come in and approving

4      it until that $2 million is spent.

5           So the sooner the application is in, the

6      better chances you have for --

7           MR. LESHER:  Do we have a sense of what

8      portion of each of these will be for the

9      staffing portion?

10           MS. VERDERY:  Yes.  It's broken down in

11      your letter.

12           So for the Neighborhood Service Center,

13      they're requesting 14,000 of their 68,000 for

14      staff.  And for the St. Michaels Community

15      Center, they are asking for approximately

16      $30,000 for staff.  And that's for a chef, a

17      volunteer coordinator, and food pantry staff.

18           MR. LESHER:  Thank you.

19           MS. VERDERY:  Okay.

20           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Any other questions

21      from Council?
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1           MS. MIELKE:  No questions.

2           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  So I guess at this

3      time, we'll open it up to the public hearing.

4           So at this time, if anybody wants to come

5      up, give you three minutes.  Yup.

6           MS. NEWMAN:  Dana Newman.  I live at 695

7      Bozman Neavitt Road.

8           And I support fully funding for both the

9      Community Center in St. Michaels, I've

10      volunteered there, and as well as the

11      Neighborhood Service Center.  We partner, the

12      library partners with them, and we see the

13      value that they provide the community with the

14      food programs in particular.

15           And at this time, I truly believe that

16      this is a time where this funding is really

17      needed for staffing but as well as their

18      programs.

19           So I support that.  Thank you.

20           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Thank you.  Okay.

21           Yes, ma'am, come on up.
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1           MS. HORNE:  Hi.  My name is Amy Horne.

2      I'm a resident of Easton.  I live on Dover

3      Street.  But I'm the director for the

4      St. Michaels Community Center.

5           And so I just wanted to thank you for this

6      opportunity and thank Mary Kay for her work on

7      this.

8           And I realize that a substantial part of

9      our request has to do with staffing.  The

10      reason for that is because of the increased

11      needs that we're seeing in the St. Michaels

12      community.  And in order for us to keep up with

13      that, our staff is already taxed as it is.  And

14      so we really need somebody else who can help

15      out in the kitchen.  We also need somebody as a

16      separate volunteer coordinator.  And so this

17      would allow us to create those positions and

18      then continue to fund them.

19           We're already seeing an increased need in

20      St. Michaels.  Just three times in the last

21      two weeks I've had people come in off pantry
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1      hours looking for pantry bags and telling me

2      that if it wasn't for the pantry, they wouldn't

3      be able to make ends meet and eat.  And these

4      are all Talbot County residents.

5           So we really appreciate your

6      consideration, especially for, you know,

7      this -- this additional funding, it's like

8      found money.  So thank you very much.

9           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Thank you.

10      Appreciate it.

11           Anybody else like to come up?  Okay.

12           MS. NEAL:  Good afternoon.

13           MR. CALLAHAN:  Good afternoon.

14           MS. NEAL:  I'm Marilyn Neal, the director

15      for the Neighborhood Service Center.

16           And basically I just want to thank you for

17      all of your support.  And I echo everything

18      that Ms. Horne said.  The need in every

19      category is growing overnight.

20           So we thank you for your support on this

21      project.
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1           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Thank you.

2           MS. NEAL:  And thank you, Mary Kay.

3           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Anybody else like to

4      come up?  Okay.

5           At this time, Madam Secretary, I'll close

6      the public hearing.

7           SECRETARY:  Okay.

8           MR. CALLAHAN:  All right.  And do we need

9      to make a motion?  Okay.  Yup.  Make a motion

10      to accept the application.

11           MS. HAYTHE:  So moved.

12           MR. LESHER:  I'll second that amendment.

13           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  We got a motion and

14      second.  Madam Secretary, could you call the

15      vote.

16           SECRETARY:  Mr. Callahan.

17           MR. CALLAHAN:  Aye.

18           SECRETARY:  Mr. Stepp.

19           MR. STEPP:  Aye.

20           SECRETARY:  Mr. Lesher.

21           MR. LESHER:  Aye.
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1           SECRETARY:  Ms. Mielke.

2           MS. MIELKE:  Aye.

3           SECRETARY:  Ms. Haythe.

4           MS. HAYTHE:  Aye.

5           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Thank you, Mary Kay.

6           MS. VERDERY:  Thank you very much.

7           MS. HAYTHE:  Appreciate it, Mary Kay.

8           MR. CALLAHAN:  Yup.  Appreciate it.  Okay.

9           Next that we have is we have -- I'm sorry?

10           MS. MIELKE:  The proclamation.

11           MR. CALLAHAN:  Yup, yup.  We got the

12      proclamation.  You want to go ahead and come on

13      up, Two Lights for Tomorrow.

14           MS. MIELKE:  Here are the two lights.

15           MR. CALLAHAN:  Yup.  We got the two

16      lights.  We need to turn them on.

17           MS. KILMON:  They're solar powered.  I

18      don't think they're going to come on in here.

19           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  I got you.  Okay.

20      Well, welcome.

21           MS. KILMON:  Here you go.
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1           MR. CALLAHAN:  There we go.  That's cool.

2           Madam Secretary, could you go ahead and

3      read the proclamation in the record, please.

4           SECRETARY:  Proclamation, April 18, 2025,

5      Two Lights for Tomorrow.

6           Whereas, Talbot County recognizes the

7      importance of commemorating the 250th

8      anniversary of the founding of our nation and

9      of reflecting on the founding principles that

10      continue to shape our national identity.

11           And whereas, the events of 1775, one year

12      before the signing of the Declaration of

13      Independence, signaled the birth of a shared

14      American identity and a unity of purpose that

15      crossed geographic, cultural, and societal

16      divides, when individuals and communities

17      across the colonies came together in mutual

18      support, as on the night of April 18, 1775,

19      when Paul Revere, William Dawes, and others

20      risked their lives to ride throughout the

21      countryside nearby Boston, Massachusetts, to
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1      warn of impending British aggression in Boston.

2           And whereas, before their historic ride

3      the prearranged lantern signal, one if by land

4      and two if by sea, was set in the steeple of

5      Boston's Old North Church to ensure the alarm

6      would spread, a moment later immortalized by

7      Henry Wadsworth Longfellow's poem, Paul

8      Revere's Ride.

9           And whereas, those two lanterns have

10      become enduring symbols of American vigilance,

11      courage, and preparedness and the actions of

12      the riders who sounded the alarm on the night

13      of April 18, 1775.  And the militia at

14      Lexington and Concord exemplifying the spirit

15      of service and shared responsibility, reminding

16      us 250 years later that the call for unity and

17      service remains as vital today as it was in

18      1775.

19           And whereas, with the support of

20      governmental entities and public and private

21      organizations, a national initiative, Two
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1      Lights for Tomorrow, invites communities across

2      the country to display two lights on the

3      evening of April 18, 2025, to symbolize the

4      start of America's journey toward independence

5      and to launch the 250th anniversary

6      commemorations culminating on July 4, 2026.

7           Now, therefore, we, the County Council of

8      Talbot County, do hereby endorse the Two Lights

9      for Tomorrow initiative and call on all

10      residents to participate by displaying two

11      lights on the night of April 18, 2025, as a

12      symbol of remembrance, unity, and our continued

13      pursuit of a better tomorrow.

14           Given under our hands in the great seal of

15      Talbot County, Maryland, this 15th day of April

16      in the year of our Lord, 2025.

17           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Good job, Madam

18      Secretary.

19           All right.  At this time --

20           MR. STEPP:  I'll make a motion.

21           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.
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1           MR. LESHER:  Second.

2           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  We got a motion and

3      second.  Madam Secretary, could you call the

4      vote.

5           SECRETARY:  Mr. Callahan.

6           MR. CALLAHAN:  Aye.

7           SECRETARY:  Mr. Stepp.

8           MR. STEPP:  Aye.

9           SECRETARY:  Mr. Lesher.

10           MR. LESHER:  Aye.

11           SECRETARY:  Ms. Mielke.

12           MS. MIELKE:  Aye.

13           SECRETARY:  Ms. Haythe.

14           MS. HAYTHE:  Aye.

15           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.

16           MS. KILMON:  Hi, guys.

17           MR. CALLAHAN:  How are you?

18           MS. KILMON:  My name is Sarah Kilmon.  I'm

19      the communications coordinator for the Talbot

20      County government.  I am also the administrator

21      for the Talbot 250 Commission.
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1           And I have with me.

2           MS. JOHNSON:  Michelle Johnson, director

3      of the Maryland 250 Commission.

4           And I have traveled throughout the state

5      encouraging communities to participate in

6      American's 250th birthday through next year.

7      But I'm also a very proud resident of Talbot

8      County.  And like all of you, I love this

9      county.

10           So anyway, I just wanted to say -- oh, my

11      gosh.  I had to drive over the bridge and I was

12      in traffic.  So thank you for moving this back

13      on the agenda.

14           MR. CALLAHAN:  No problem.

15           MS. JOHNSON:  And I really just wanted to

16      say thank you for participating in the 250th.

17           Councilman Lesher is a member of the

18      Maryland 250 Commission.  And we, on behalf of

19      the Commission, thank you for being part of

20      this.

21           MR. CALLAHAN:  You're welcome, you're
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1      welcome.

2           MS. KILMON:  Thank you.  So yes.  I mean

3      today's proclamation kind of came out of

4      nowhere actually.  The actual church where the

5      lights were first lit for Paul Revere for that

6      night, they do this every year, at least on big

7      anniversaries.  But it became a national

8      movement to do it this year because it's the

9      250th anniversary of Paul Revere's ride and the

10      other.  There's several, several names that

11      rode that night.

12           So I just wanted to say that these lights

13      don't -- they're more than just about history.

14      They also reflect our shared values of unity,

15      service, and hope for a better future.  And

16      that is the nationwide mission that they're

17      trying to communicate.

18           And as part of our Talbot 250 initiative,

19      this event serves as the ceremonial start of

20      our local semi-quincentennial commemorations

21      and events, with our next one coming up next
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1      week, which is Talbot Day on the 25th, which is

2      our anniversary.

3           So I did want to say I did bring with me

4      the two lanterns that we're going to display on

5      the courthouse steps.  So if anyone sees these

6      this weekend and they're like what the heck is

7      that, now you know.  It's for Two Lights for

8      Tomorrow.

9           And it's a small but symbolic reminder of

10      how a single light can spark something so

11      great, even 250 years ago.

12           So I did also we want to invite all

13      residents to participate by displaying two

14      lights at sunset on April 18th.

15           And across Maryland, a lot of counties

16      have decided to keep them up all weekend.  So

17      it's from 18, 19, and 20.  If you prefer, you

18      can keep them up.

19           And I would also like to invite the public

20      to attend our next Talbot 250 Commission

21      meeting, which is our first meeting as a group.
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1      And that is on April 21st at 5 p.m.

2           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Sounds great.

3           MS. HAYTHE:  Great.  Well, thank you for

4      being here, Michelle.

5           I know that wind was blowing going across

6      the Bay Bridge.  So that may have held you up a

7      little bit.

8           But this is great.  We're excited about

9      the 250th celebration and Talbot Day as well.

10      So congratulations on your serving as the

11      director for this, and we're glad that you live

12      right here in Talbot County.  So thank you.

13           And thank you, Sarah, as well.

14           MS. JOHNSON:  Thank you.

15           MS. MIELKE:  I love the plan.  And I

16      congratulate you on planning this, and it's

17      very close to my heart because when I was in

18      the fifth grade, I played William Dawes in a

19      little play that we had.  So I've always been

20      close to both Paul Revere and William Dawes.

21      Thank you.
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1           MR. LESHER:  And Dawes was the one who

2      actually made the ride, as opposed to Revere,

3      who got detained.

4           MS. MIELKE:  And I brought that to the

5      attention of the director of the play.

6           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.

7           MR. LESHER:  But Revere, of course, was --

8      or Longfellow was kin to Revere.  And

9      therefore, he was the one who got all of the

10      attention in Longworth's (sic.) poem, which

11      says in part:

12           He said to his friend, if the British

13      march by land or sea from the town tonight,

14      hang a lantern aloft in the belfry arch of the

15      North Church tower as a signal light.  One if

16      by land and two if by sea.  And I on the

17      opposite shore will be ready to ride and spread

18      the alarm through every Middlesex village and

19      farm, to the country folk to be up and to arm.

20           And it goes on.

21           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Yup.
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1           MR. STEPP:  We have some incredible times

2      coming up throughout this year and next.  And

3      appreciate all the work that everyone is doing

4      here, locally, Sarah, with you with what you're

5      doing for us for Talbot Day, what we're doing

6      at a state level.  Just everything is just

7      going to be absolutely amazing for this course

8      of this year and next.

9           So thank you, both, very much.

10           MR. CALLAHAN:  Yup.  And like my

11      colleagues said, Michelle, really appreciate

12      you coming here tonight and making an effort

13      and all you're doing for the State and here

14      locally, too.  Really appreciate it.

15           And same with you, Sarah.  Really good job

16      and looking forward to it.

17           MS. KILMON:  Yeah.  I also want to thank

18      Michelle.  I know it was a big commitment to

19      make all this happen in like two weeks because

20      it was very like out of the blue.  And we

21      jumped on a call and discussed it.  And now so
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1      many counties tonight, including Gail, who is

2      our heritage area director, wanted to be here.

3      But she is doing the same thing for Kent County

4      right now.

5           So it's very exciting to see this

6      initiative.  And this will be a one-year thing.

7      We won't probably do it again next year because

8      it's the 250th this year.  So it's exciting,

9      and it does kick off a lot of fun things.

10           MR. CALLAHAN:  That's good.  Well, thank

11      you, guys.  Appreciate it.  Thanks for coming

12      in.

13           Okay.  All right.  I guess next on the

14      agenda is the public hearing.  Or public

15      comments.  Yup.  Anybody want to come up?  Yup.

16           MS. SPARKS:  I want to take a moment to

17      speak about Corporal Bob Musterman.

18           You know the desk and the monitors that

19      aid our deputies to keep our courthouse safe is

20      located right outside of my office.  And it's

21      located right in the middle of the Finance
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1      Department.

2           During the day, my staff are always in

3      motion around this station.  They hear our

4      talk, we hear their talk, and I've always

5      considered them and told them that they're

6      quasi finance employees.  We work together, but

7      we also laugh together.

8           Bob was a constant presence among us.  If

9      I've heard him say it once, I've heard him say

10      it 100 times.  Hey, what are you hear for, as

11      he helped people to get where they needed to

12      go.  He used to joke that he was the

13      courthouse's version of a Walmart greeter.

14           Bob wouldn't let anyone in to see me

15      unless I was expecting them.  And I used to

16      tease him that he was my personal assistant.

17           Bob was quiet authority.  He, along with

18      all of our courthouse deputies, keep employees

19      and visitors safe by their presence.  And

20      today, I feel a little less protected.

21           We will deeply miss Bob.  And I want to
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1      encourage everyone to never underestimate --

2      I'm sorry.  The lasting impact that you have on

3      your friends and your family and your

4      coworkers.  Be kind and make each other laugh.

5           MR. CALLAHAN:  Thank you.  Okay.

6           Anybody else for the public comment?

7      Okay.

8           I'll go ahead and open it up to Council

9      comment.  Mr. Stepp.

10           MR. STEPP:  I'll just carry on with what

11      Martha just said.  Just thoughts and prayers

12      for the Musterman family.

13           MR. CALLAHAN:  Yeah.

14           MR. STEPP:  Ask that from anyone.  Thank

15      you.

16           MR. CALLAHAN:  Mr. Lesher.

17           MR. LESHER:  Just to thank Ms. Sparks for

18      that touching tribute to Deputy Musterman.

19      Thank you.

20           MR. CALLAHAN:  Yup.

21           MS. MIELKE:  Only thing I have to add is
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1      Bob, God rest your soul.

2           MR. CALLAHAN:  Yeah.

3           MS. HAYTHE:  I echo what all my colleagues

4      said.

5           I just want to wish everyone a Happy

6      Easter as we celebrate as well.

7           MR. CALLAHAN:  Yup.  And Martha, thanks

8      for that, for those kind words.

9           And we all got Bob in our hearts.  That's

10      for sure.  And let's just say a prayer for the

11      whole Sheriff's Department and their family

12      because it's one big family.

13           Other than that, let's go to Mr. Lesher.

14           MR. LESHER:  The County Council's next

15      meeting will be held on Tuesday, April 22nd,

16      beginning at 5 o'clock p.m.  The Council will

17      be convening in open session at 3:30 p.m. and

18      then adjourning into closed session, as listed

19      on the statement for closing that meeting.

20           On Thursday, April 17th, the Talbot County

21      Council will be meeting with elected officials
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1      from Caroline, Dorchester, Kent, and Queen

2      Anne's Counties at 6 o'clock p.m. at Chesapeake

3      College to review the college's fiscal year 26

4      budget.  The meeting is open to the public and

5      will be held in the Dorchester Room at

6      Chesapeake College.

7           Therefore, is there a motion to adjourn

8      this meeting and reconvene as noted?

9           MS. HAYTHE:  So moved.

10           MR. STEPP:  Second.

11           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  We got a motion and

12      a second.  Madam Secretary, could you call the

13      vote.

14           SECRETARY:  Mr. Callahan.

15           MR. CALLAHAN:  Aye.

16           SECRETARY:  Mr. Stepp.

17           MR. STEPP:  Aye.

18           SECRETARY:  Mr. Lesher.

19           MR. LESHER:  Aye.

20           SECRETARY:  Ms. Mielke.

21           MS. MIELKE:  Aye.
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1           SECRETARY:  Ms. Haythe.
2           MS. HAYTHE:  Aye.
3           MR. CALLAHAN:  Okay.  Thanks a lot.
4          (Meeting concluded at:  5:50 p.m.)
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
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1                  STATE OF MARYLAND
2            I, Diane Houlihan, a Notary Public in and

for the State of Maryland, County of Baltimore City,
3 do hereby certify that the within named, Talbot

County Council Audio, personally appeared before me
4 at the time and place herein set according to law,

was interrogated by counsel.
5

          I further certify that the examination was
6 recorded stenographically by me and then transcribed

from my stenographic notes to the within printed
7 matter by means of computer-assisted transcription

in a true and accurate manner.
8

          I further certify that the stipulations
9 contained herein were entered into by counsel in my

presence.
10

          I further certify that I am not of counsel
11 to any of the parties, not an employee of counsel,

nor related to any of the parties, nor in any way
12 interested in the outcome of this action.
13           AS WITNESS my hand Notorial Seal this 17th

day of April, 2025, at Easton, MD.
14
15

                               <%1362,Signature%>
16                               _________________

                              Diane Houlihan
17                               Notary Public
18
19

My commission expires September 16, 2025    5:50.
20
21
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